

Minnesota Mississippi River Parkway Commission 4<sup>th</sup> Quarter Meeting – November 17, 2022 Historic Fort Snelling/Zoom Hybrid MINUTES – Draft

#### **Commissioners Present**

Megan Christianson – Grand Rapids to Brainerd Karl Samp – Brainerd to Elk River Jennifer Weaver – Hastings to Iowa Border Sen. David Senjem Sen. Patricia Torres Ray Paul Hugunin – Agriculture Appointee David Kelliher – Historical Society Appointee Grant Wilson – Natural Resources Appointee Lisa Havelka – Tourism Appointee Anne Lewis – At Large Member

#### **Technical Advisors/Staff Present**

Kelli Bruns – Natural Resources Carol Zoff – Transportation Diane Henry Wangensteen – LCC Carol Bisbee - LCC Chris Miller – MN-MRPC Staff

## Members Absent

Sally Fineday – Lake Itasca to Grand Rapids John Anfinson – Elk River to Hastings Rep. Emma Greenman Rep. Kristin Robbins Marni Karnowski - Transportation Appointee Tucker Blythe – National Park Service

### Speakers & Guests Present

Nicole Bartelt, Department of Transportation Christina Iliev, Department of Agriculture

Meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. by Chair Senjem. A quorum was present. Special thanks to Historic Fort Snelling and the Minnesota Historical Society for hosting today's meeting and providing a tour.

**Approve Minutes from 8/11/22 Meeting:** Motion by Anne Lewis and seconded by Megan Christianson to approve the August 11, 2022 meeting minutes as presented. Motion carried.

**Budget Report**: The budget report in the meeting packet was referenced by Chris Miller and Anne Lewis. The report includes columns identifying the FY 23 base allocation along with carry forward funds remaining from FY 22. Report approved by consensus.

**Regional Meetings/Elections:** Regional Meetings and elections of Regional Commissioners are coming up on November 30 (Metro Region) and December 1 (Bluffs Region). Meetings will be held via Zoom and MN-MRPC members are always welcome.

**2023 Quarterly Meetings:** Quarterly meeting dates for 2023 are to be determined and will be announced in December. Meetings will likely be in a hybrid format with the in-person location being somewhere within the Capitol Complex. Due to high demand for hybrid rooms during the legislative session, the first quarter meeting could be scheduled on a Friday instead of the usual Thursday. Legislative appointments to the MN-MRPC will be made in early 2023, sometime prior to the first meeting.

**Election of At-Large Member:** The At-Large Member of the MN-MRPC is appointed by the other 14 members every two years. Nominations for the position were requested by email. Chair Senjem announced that three nominations for Anne Lewis were received and called for any additional nominations with none noted. Motion by Karl Samp and seconded by Grant Wilson to close nominations and elect Anne Lewis as At-Large Member for a new two-year term. Motion carried.

Member Updates: Member updates were included in the meeting packet.

**National MRPC Annual Meeting and Updates:** Anne Lewis noted the handout in the meeting packet, a summary prepared by the National MRPC Office. She congratulated John Anfinson on his election as Pilot Pro Tem (Vice Chair) of the MRPC and congratulated Sen. Senjem on receiving the MRPC Distinguished Service Award. Technical committee work was the main focus of the meeting, the first in-person ten state meeting since 2019. Sen. Senjem reported that the meeting also involved some joint activities with the National Caucus of Environmental Legislators, who were meeting in the same venue. Karl Samp asked about future national meetings and locations, including if Bemidji is still being

considered as a possible location. The MRPC Board will be discussing future meeting formats soon and will be deciding on whether there will be one or two in-person meetings annually.

**Drive the Great River Road Month 2022 Report:** Christina Iliev from the Minnesota Department of Agriculture reported on results of the Fall Harvest promotion for Drive the Great River Road Month 2022. She provided a recap of the campaign components including the State Fair kick-off event, webpage, itineraries, Pick of the Month newsletter, traveler kits with survey, photo contest and social media. Thanks were expressed to all Commission members and agencies that assisted with information, kit items and communications. Chair Senjem and members applauded the enthusiasm and leadership of the Minnesota Department of Agriculture and Minnesota Grown Program and thanked them for the outstanding promotion. A request was made for a copy of today's presentation. It will be emailed to members and is also available at <a href="https://www.commissions.leg.state.mn.us/mrpc/Meetings22-23.html">https://www.commissions.leg.state.mn.us/mrpc/Meetings22-23.html</a> with other November 17 meeting materials.

**Transportation Alternatives Projects – Letters of Support:** Chris Miller provided background on the process the Commission has used in recent years to consider letters of support for this funding source. The Commission considers information from letters of intent to apply for the funding, and then if the Commission approves support letters, staff reaches out to project applicants to offer letters if they move forward with the full application. This process allows the Commission to act at a regularly scheduled meeting and still meet the application deadline. Carol Zoff shared information on the letters of intent received by the Department of Transportation and referenced the summary of projects from Great River Road communities she provided for the meeting packet. 10 projects are from Great River Road communities and five of the projects have direct benefit to the byway and byway traveler and help implement the MN Great River Road Corridor Management Plan. The applicant organizations for those projects are Cuyuna Lakes Trail Association, City of Rice, City of Little Falls, City of Red Wing and City of Brainerd. Motion by Karl Samp and seconded by David Kelliher to authorize letters of support for the five projects as recommended. Motion carried.

**Lower St. Anthony Falls/Lock & Dam #1 Disposition Study – Scoping Comments:** John Anfinson provided a draft letter for Commission consideration, included in the meeting packet. The letter asks that byway intrinsic qualities and the MN-MRPC mission be considered as part of the scoping process for the Lower St. Anthony Falls/Lock & Dam #1 disposition study that will be completed by the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. A public comment period for this purpose is now open. Members discussed the letter and suggested an addition clarifying that byway intrinsic qualities are defined by the Federal Highway Administration. Motion by Megan Christianson and seconded by Anne Lewis to authorize the letter, as amended, for submittal to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Motion carried.

**Other Business:** Megan Christianson shared an update from the MRPC Marketing Committee. The National Great River Road website has had a surge in visitors recently. Itineraries are important, popular, and allow people to make them their own. Enewsletter and Facebook likes are also up. The committee is looking into new opportunities for local entities to place digital ads/banners on the National Great River Road platform.

**Closing Comments:** Sen. Senjem recognized departing members Jennifer Weaver and Sen. Torres Ray. Both shared comments with their fellow members. Sen. Torres Ray encouraged the Commission to consider partnering with the MSP Film Society and local theaters in river communities. Sen. Senjem shared parting comments with the Commission. He chose this group when he was first elected to the Senate and stayed with it for 20 years, not wanting to give it up because of the unique partnerships and nature of the work. David Kelliher thanked the MN-MRPC for coming to Historic Fort Snelling, expressing thanks to outgoing members, and he presented a plaque to outgoing Chair Senjem in honor of his outstanding service. Discussion and good wishes followed.

Next Meeting: 2023 meeting dates have not yet been set.

Adjournment: There being no further business, meeting was adjourned at 4:20 p.m.

# Minnesota Mississippi River Parkway Commission (MN-MRPC)

#### Full Commission

- Comprised of 15 voting members as defined in <u>Minnesota Statute 161.1419</u>, along with staff from agencies (also known as technical members).
- Quorum is achieved by attendance of 8 voting members (50% of members plus one). If vacancies exist on the Commission roster, the number of attendees to achieve quorum will adjust accordingly.
- The Commission meets quarterly at a minimum. Generally each meeting is 2.5 hours in length.
- State Commission meetings are open to the public, to the extent required by Minnesota Statute Chapter 13D, and audiotapes are posted online following the meetings.
- Meeting agendas, packets, minutes and audio are available at <a href="http://www.commissions.leg.state.mn.us/mrpc/mrpc.html">http://www.commissions.leg.state.mn.us/mrpc/mrpc.html</a>.
- Staffing support provided by MN-MRPC Director, MnDOT Great River Road Program Manager, and Legislative Coordinating Commission.
- The Commission is a member of the ten-state national Mississippi River Parkway Commission.

#### Executive Committee

- Comprised of five members as authorized by the MN-MRPC. Membership to include the Chair, Vice-Chair and Secretary/Treasurer. Two additional members will be selected by the MN-MRPC. Overall composition of the Executive Committee should include one House or Senate member, one agency representative and one regional representative. Membership term is two years, with the committee membership elected by the MN-MRPC every other spring.
- Quorum is achieved by attendance of 3 voting members.
- Executive Committee meetings are open to the public, to the extent required by Minnesota Statute Chapter 13D, and audiotapes are posted online following the meeting.
- Meeting agendas, packets, minutes and audio are available at <a href="http://www.commissions.leg.state.mn.us/mrpc/mrpc.html">http://www.commissions.leg.state.mn.us/mrpc/mrpc.html</a>.
- Staffing support provided by MN-MRPC Director, MnDOT Great River Road Program Manager, and Legislative Coordinating Commission.
- Generally meets twice per year (such as at the change of the fiscal year, and prior to the Legislative Session) and as needed between full Commission meetings.
- Maintains Commission membership appointment/election process, recruitment, orientation. The full Commission elects the at-large member.
- Maintains affiliation with National MRPC including staying current on dues payments, ensuring National Meeting and National Committee representation from MN-MRPC.
- Monitors Corridor Management Plan implementation progress and leverages resource needs.
- Facilitates coordination with House and Senate.

Ŗ
ň
Ð
ž
ā
Γ
2
÷
<u>s</u> .
Ŧ
9
◄
m
Ň
5
Ĺ.
Õ
2
Σ
T
Ż
₹
2

	Total FY 23				
Activity/Item	Budget	Spent 2-7-23	Pending	Remaining	% Spent
Quarterly Meetings	\$4,000.00	\$242.50		\$3,757.50	6%
Commission Members - other meetings travel & per diem	\$1,000.00	\$213.89		\$786.11	21%
Dues & Memberships (MRPC National Dues, Natl Scenic Byway Foundation)	\$15,000.00	\$150.00		\$14,850.00	1%
National Meetings	\$12,000.00	\$5,714.31		\$6,285.69	48%
Communications including website hosting, phone, Zoom, Constant Contact, etc.	\$1,400.00	\$356.41	\$555.60	\$487.99	65%
Website General Updates	\$1,200.00	\$540.50	\$75.00	\$584.50	51%
Shipping (including 10-state maps to Interpretive Centers)	\$3,000.00	\$86.68		\$2,913.32	3%
General Material Printing & Supplies	\$823.88	\$142.72		\$681.16	17%
Admin Contract	\$38,400.00	\$17,200.00	\$3,200.00	\$18,000.00	53%
Professional-Technical Service including additional staff hours, web services, graphic					
design services, etc.	\$7,000.00			\$7,000.00	%0
Ambassador Program*	\$5,000.00			\$5,000.00	%0
Access-Welcoming Environment*	\$3,000.00			\$3,000.00	%0
GRR Info/Promotion*	\$3,000.00			\$3,000.00	%0
Total Operating Budget	\$94,823.88	\$24,647.01	\$3,830.60	\$66,346.27	30%
Notes:					
* Carry forward funds tentatively placed in recent Commission priority areas					



February 2, 2023

Dear Business and Organization Leaders,

The Cuyuna Lakes State Trail Volunteer Association is asking for letters of support from organizations and businesses such as yourself. This is an important step in the approval process to proceed with plans to complete the trail. We hope that you will take the time to write a letter of support for the trail construction and we have provided a suggested text below if you should choose to use it.

## An Overview of information to know.

The Cuyuna Lakes State Trail expansion would connect the existing 9-mile paved section of the Cuyuna Lakes State Trail from Riverton to Brainerd. The trail currently runs from Riverton to Deerwood, passing through Crosby-Ironton along the way. The new segment of trail would be asphalt paved construction and would be for non-motorized recreational use (biking, walking, running, cross country skiing, snowshoeing, etc.). The new portion that we are seeking to build would pass through portions of the Cuyuna Country State Recreation Area and undeveloped Crow Wing County land. A large portion of this public land known at the Mississippi River Northwoods sits between HWY 210 and the Mississippi River was purchased through the MN Outdoor Heritage Fund to protect it from private development and turned over to Crow Wing County to manage several years ago. The dirt trails that currently exist on the property are already approved and used for snowmobile and seasonal ATV use managed by Crow Wing County.

Our plan is to create a new non motorized paved trail corridor with three objectives:

- 1. We would like to create a new corridor to make sure that we do not displace any current trail users and their existing rights to the trails that already exist.
- 2. We would like to make this beautiful land more accessible to area residents who prefer a non motorized experience.
- 3. We would like to have this new trail be as friendly to the environment as possible which is why there will be an extensive process of route planning and environmental approvals to make sure the trail has a minimal impact on the environment while providing more opportunity for residents to enjoy its beauty.

Our hope is that the funding for this project will come from multiple sources with the bulk of the money coming from State of Minnesota bonding if approved. We hope that you will give us your support by submitting a letter as outlined below.

Thank you for your time and support!

The Cuyuna Lakes State Trail Association

## Contact Information To Send Letters Of Support

Please send your letters of support to **CLTA**, **P.O. Box 908**, **Brainerd**, **MN 56401** Be sure to sign the letter and include the name and address of your business or organization on business letterhead if available.

## Suggested Letter Of Support (please use business letterhead, if available)

Date

Dear Crow Wing County and MN Legislators,

We fully support the development of the Cuyuna Lakes State Trail from Riverton to Brainerd. We understand the care that is being taken to have an environmentally friendly route planned and approved and the intent as well to not exclude other user groups from the land. We also support the trail for its recreational opportunities that it will bring to our region not only for the benefit of local residents and businesses, but also as a means of continuing to make the Brainerd and Cuyuna Lakes Regions a draw to tourists year-round.

We know that recreational trails such as this create a healthier community physically, emotionally, and financially and is a wise economic investment in our region.

Thank you, Name Business or Organization Address